

50-64 Customhouse Quay PO Box 2791 Wellington New Zealand DX SP20002 Wgtn Tel +64 4 472 6289 Fax +64 4 472 7429 www.dlaphillipsfox.com

## Deed Establishing the Abel Tasman Birdsong Trust

Richard James Buxton Fowler Rudolfus Matheus Tetteroo, John William Charleton, Maureen Agness Clinton-Baker, Mark Bradley Walter, Darryl John Wilson, Graham John Strickett and Richard James Buxton Fowler



# **Table of contents**

Partie	98	1				
Background1						
Operative provisions						
1	Definitions and construction	2				
2	Establishment of the Trust	5				
3	Name of Trust	6				
4	Objects and purposes of the Trust	6				
5	Trusts of Income and Capital Income of the Trust Capital of the Trust	7				
6	Powers of the Trustees	9				
	Duties of Trustees  Trustees' responsibilities  Reporting and financial records	. 10				
	Charitable Trusts Act 1957 and the Charities Commission					
	IncorporationCommon Seal					
	Charities Commission					
	Appointment, retirement and proceedings of Trustees					
	Number of Trustees					
	Termination of office					
	Appointment Panel					
	Removal of Trustees	15				
	Term of office	16				
	Appointment of chairperson					
	Proceedings of Trustees.					
	Convening of meetings of Trustees					
	Resolution assented to by Trustees					
	Teleconference meeting of Trustees					
	General Provisions					
	Service of notices					
	Receipts					
	Delegation by Trustees					
	Remuneration and expenses					
	Prohibition of benefit or advantage by Related Parties					
	Interested Trustees					
	Trustees' indemnity and liability Amendment of the Trust	27				
	Winding up of the Trust					
	tion and date					



#### **Parties**

Richard James Buxton Fowler of Wellington, Lawyer (Settlor)

Rudolfus Matheus Tetteroo of Upper Moutere, Public Servant, John William Charleton of Nelson, Manager, Maureen Agness Clinton-Baker of Nelson, Manager, Mark Bradley Walter of Nelson, Manager, Darryl John Wilson of Nelson, Manager, Graham John Strickett of Nelson, Pest Control Officer and Richard James Buxton Fowler of Wellington, Lawyer (Trustees).

## **Background**

- A The Settlor wishes to establish a trust to be known as the Abel Tasman Birdsong Trust for the objects set out in this document.
- B The Trustees have agreed to act as trustees of the Trust.
- C This document has been completed by the Settlor and Trustees to establish the terms of the Trust.

## Operative provisions

## 1 Definitions and construction

#### **Definitions**

1.1 In this deed, unless the context requires otherwise:

**Appointment Panel** means the group appointed by the Trustees under clause 9.7 and comprising whatever Persons the Trustees see fit.

**Charitable Purposes** means every purpose which under the law of New Zealand is charitable.

**Financial Year** means the Financial Year commencing on 1 April and ending on 31 March in the following year or any other Financial Year adopted by the Trustees.

Person includes, without limitation, any body corporate, firm, organisation or trust.

**Related Party** means a person specified in section CW 35(5) of the Income Tax Act 2004, the persons currently specified being:

- (a) a settlor or trustee of the trust by which the business is carried on, or
- (b) a shareholder or director of the company by which the business is carried on, or



- (c) a settlor or trustee of a trust that is a shareholder of the company by which the business is carried on, or
- (d) a person where that person is associated with any person in (a) to (c) above, where associated means associated in terms of section OD 7 of the Income Tax Act 2004

**Special Resolution** means a resolution passed at a meeting of Trustees at which not less than three quarters of the Trustees present and voting, vote in favour of the resolution.

**Tax Laws** means any of the Inland Revenue Acts as that term is defined for the purposes of the Tax Administration Act 1993.

Trust means the Abel Tasman Birdsong Trust established by this deed.

**Trust Fund** means the all money, investments, property and assets, and leases or licences of property and assets, from time to time owned or beneficially held by the Trust.

**Trustees** or **Trust Board** means the Trustees of the Trust from time to time. **Trustee** means a Trustee of the Trust from time to time.

**Working Day** means a day on which the trading banks are open for business in Nelson.

#### Interpretation

- 1.2 In the construction of this deed, unless the context otherwise requires:
  - 1.2.1 A reference to 'Trustees' is a reference to the trustees for the time being of the Trust Fund whether original, additional or substituted and includes the trustees that sign this deed and any future additional or substituted trustees.
  - 1.2.2 A person includes any individual, company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, organisation, Trust, state or agency of state (in each case whether or not having separate legal personality).
  - 1.2.3 Headings are included for convenience only and do not affect the interpretation of this deed.
  - 1.2.4 This deed is binding upon the parties and their respective successors and permitted assignees.
  - 1.2.5 Where the context permits, words describing the singular include the plural and vice versa and words imputing masculine, feminine or neuter gender include all genders.
  - 1.2.6 In this deed, unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to any legislation includes a modification and re-enactment of that legislation or



legislation enacted to substitution for any regulation, order in council and other instrument from time to time issued or made under that legislation.

1.2.7 For the purposes of the Perpetuity Act 1964, the perpetuity period applicable to this deed shall be 80 years from the date of the this deed.

## 2 Establishment of the Trust

- 2.1 The Settlor settles the sum of \$20.00 on the Trustees to be held by them on the terms set out in this document.
- 2.2 The Trustees agree to act as trustees of the Trust on the terms set out in this document.
- 2.3 The Trust shall comprise the Trust Fund from time to time held by or within the control of the Trustees under this document, including the income arising from the Trust Fund and any accumulation of such income.
- 2.4 The Trust Fund shall be held on Trust by the Trustees and shall be managed and administered on the terms contained in this document.
- 2.5 The Trust shall commence on the date of this document and shall continue until terminated under clause 10.15.

#### 3 Name of Trust

3.1 The name of the Trust is the 'Abel Tasman Birdsong Trust'.

## 4 Objects and purposes of the Trust

- 4.1 The objects of the Trust are:
  - 4.1.1 To preserve native flora and fauna in Abel Tasman National Park;
  - 4.1.2 To enhance Abel Tasman National Park and its environs for recreation and enjoyment by residents and visitors now and in the future;
  - 4.1.3 To generally promote the sustainable management of resources in Abel Tasman National Park and its environs:
  - 4.1.4 Generally to do or perform all such acts matters or things as may be incidental or conducive to the attainment of any of the foregoing objects.
- The Trust's objects shall only be carried out in and to benefit people in New Zealand, however the Trustees may carry out activities outside New Zealand to promote the Trust or the Trust activities, but only if they believe that such activities will be for the ultimate benefit of the people of New Zealand.



## 5 Trusts of Income and Capital

#### Income of the Trust

- 5.1 The Trustees may with respect to all or any part of the income arising from the Trust Fund for each Financial Year:
  - 5.1.1 pay, apply, or appropriate from income (to the extent income is available) all expenses and other charges and provisions ordinarily met from income;
  - 5.1.2 make, retain or charge against income any payments, reserves or provisions necessary or desirable for the proper administration and maintenance of the Trust and the Trust Fund including any appropriate reserves for capital works which the Trustees consider desirable to achieve the objects of the Trust;
  - 5.1.3 reduce or repay any loans or liabilities of the Trust; and
  - 5.1.4 pay, apply or appropriate from income such amount as the Trustees decide for or towards one or more of the objects of the Trust.
- Any income of any Financial Year not dealt with under clause 5.1 shall be accumulated and added to the capital of the Trust Fund.

## Capital of the Trust

At any time the Trustees may, or may decide to, pay, apply or appropriate as much of the capital of the Trust Fund as they think fit for or towards one or more of the objects of the Trust. If the Trustees provide for more than one such object they need not treat each object equally. Any payment, application or appropriation of capital may be made either in addition to or in place of any payment, application or appropriation of income.

#### 6 Powers of the Trustees

- In addition to the powers conferred on the Trustees by law, the Trustees shall have the widest possible powers and discretions to achieve the objects of the Trust and shall be empowered to exercise all the rights, powers and privileges and may incur all the liabilities and obligations of a natural person of full age and capacity.
- Without in any way limiting the wide powers conferred by clause 6.1 the Trustees shall have power to invest the Trust Fund and the income from the Trust Fund not immediately required for the objects of the Trust as the Trustees think fit provided that in making any investment the Trustees exercise the care, diligence and skill required of a prudent Trustee as set out in the Trustee Act 1956.



#### 7 Duties of Trustees

## Trustees' responsibilities

- 7.1 The Trustees shall take overall control of and responsibility for the governance of the Trust. The Trustees shall perform all of their responsibilities under this deed in a prudent manner and shall exercise the care, diligence and skill that a prudent person of business would exercise in managing the affairs of others.
- 7.2 The Trustees shall devote adequate and sufficient time, attention and resources to carry out their obligations under this deed to further the objects of the Trust.
- 7.3 The Trustees shall act in accordance with the objects of the Trust.

## Reporting and financial records

The Trustees will cause true and full records to be kept in such a manner as they see fit of all receipts, credits, payments and liabilities and all other matters necessary for showing the true state and condition of the Trust Fund. The annual accounts will, if required by the Trustees, be audited by an appropriately qualified person appointed by the Trustees. The accounts will be kept at the Trustees' offices or such other place as the Trustees see fit and will always be open to the inspection of the Trustees.

#### 8 Charitable Trusts Act 1957 and the Charities Commission

## Incorporation

8.1 The Trustees may after the execution of this document apply for incorporation under the Charitable Trusts Act 1957 and the Trustees are authorised to make such application on behalf of the Trust.

#### Common Seal

8.2 Upon incorporation of this Trust in accordance with clause 8.1 the Trustees shall procure a common seal for the Trust and shall provide for its custody. Any documents required to be signed under the common seal shall be attested by any two Trustees.

#### **Charities Commission**

The Trustees may at any time after the execution of this document apply to the Charities Commission for registration as a charitable entity under the Charities Act 2005.

## 9 Appointment, retirement and proceedings of Trustees

## **Number of Trustees**

9.1 There shall be not less than 3 nor more than 7 Trustees.



#### Termination of office

- 9.2 The office of a Trustee shall become vacant if the Trustee:
  - 9.2.1 is, under clause 9.3, not capable of holding office as a Trustee;
  - 9.2.2 has resigned from office;
  - 9.2.3 is removed from office by the Trustees in accordance with clause 9.9;
  - 9.2.4 is absent from New Zealand for over 12 months without obtaining a leave of absence from the Trustees;
  - 9.2.5 fails to attend 3 consecutive meetings of the Trustees without giving a reason acceptable to the Trustees;
  - 9.2.6 has come to the end of his or her term of office and has not been reappointed; or
  - 9.2.7 has died.
- 9.3 The following persons shall not be capable of being appointed or reappointed or holding office as a Trustee:
  - 9.3.1 an undischarged bankrupt;
  - 9.3.2 an individual who is under the age of 16;
  - 9.3.3 an individual who has been convicted of a crime involving dishonesty (within the meaning of section 2(1) of the Crimes Act 1961) and has been sentenced for that crime within the last 7 years;
  - 9.3.4 an individual who is prohibited from being a director or promoter of, or being concerned or taking part in the management of, a company under section 382, section 383, or section 385 of the Companies Act 1993;
  - 9.3.5 an individual who is disqualified from being an officer of a charitable entity under section 31(4) of the Charities Act 2005;
  - 9.3.6 an individual who is subject to a property order made under the Protection of Personal and Property Rights Act 1988, or whose property is managed by a trustee corporation under section 32 of that Act;
  - 9.3.7 a mentally disordered person within the meaning of the Mental Health (Compulsory Assessment and Treatment Act) 1992; and
  - 9.3.8 Any other person disqualified from being an officer of a registered charity under the Charities Act 2005.

#### **Appointment of new Trustees**

9.4 If the office of Trustee becomes vacant for any reason, the Trustees may appoint a new Trustee or Trustees.



- 9.5 Before exercising their power of appointment, the Trustees must consult the Appointment Panel.
- 9.6 The Trustees must appoint new Trustees in accordance with the recommendations made by the Appointment Panel, subject to the Trustees' approval of the proposed Trustee as a fit and proper person to act as Trustee. A duly executed resolution of Trustees will constitute evidence of the appointment and approval of the proposed Trustee under this clause.

#### **Appointment Panel**

- 9.7 The Trustees must, as soon as is practicable after the execution of this deed and before any appointment of a new Trustee under clause 9.4 appoint an Appointment Panel comprising not more than 3 nor more than 6 Persons being Persons or representing Persons that have an interest in the protection and conservation of Abel Tasman National Park.
- 9.8 Upon being consulted by the Trustees under clause 9.5, The Appointment Panel must make recommendations for the appointment of Trustees under clause 9.4.

#### Removal of Trustees

- 9.9 A Trustee may be removed from office if all of the other Trustees of the Trust resolve, by way of resolution in writing signed by those Trustees, to remove that person from office. The Trustees need not give reasons for removing the Trustee, however in exercising the power of removal, they must:
  - 9.9.1 act reasonably, having regard to the objects of the Trust; and
  - 9.9.2 if the removal of the Trustee reduces the number of Trustees to less than the minimum number of Trustees under clause 9.1, only exercise the power of removal in conjunction with the appointment of a replacement Trustee or Trustees.

#### Term of office

- 9.10 A person appointed and approved as a Trustee shall hold office for a term of 5 years unless the Trustee's office is otherwise terminated under clause 9.2.
- 9.11 A person appointed as Trustee who, at the conclusion of his or her term, remains eligible to be appointed as a Trustee is eligible to be reappointed as a Trustee under clause 9.4.

#### Appointment of chairperson

- 9.12 The Trustees shall appoint one of the Trustees to be chairperson of the Trust.
- 9.13 The chairperson of the Trust shall hold the office for a term determined by the Trustees provided that the term in each case is not longer than the chairperson's term of office as a Trustee.
- 9.14 If the chairperson is unable for any reason to perform the chairperson's duties then the Trustees may elect an acting chairperson during the relevant period.



9.15 Notwithstanding the provisions of clause 9.12 the Trustees may, by Special Resolution, replace the chairperson with a new chairperson at any time.

## **Proceedings of Trustees**

- 9.16 Subject to this deed, the Trustees may meet together for the dispatch of business and may adjourn or otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit.
- 9.17 At any meeting of the Trustees the chairperson of the Trust shall preside, or in the absence of the chairperson of the Trust the Trustees may elect one of their members to preside.
- 9.18 Decisions of the Trustees shall be decided, if possible, by a consensus of votes.
- 9.19 In the event that a consensus cannot be reached, decisions shall be decided by a majority of votes.
- 9.20 No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless the required quorum is present at the commencement of business. The quorum for passing a Special Resolution shall be three quarters of the number of Trustees. The quorum for the transaction of any business other than business that requires a Special Resolution shall be a majority of or 5 Trustees.
- 9.21 An act or decision of the Trustees present shall not be invalid by reason only of:
  - 9.21.1 a fault, default or irregularity in, or in connection with, the appointment of a Trustee; or
  - 9.21.2 a vacancy in the number of the Trustees including a vacancy arising because of the failure to appoint a Trustee.
- 9.22 The Trustees shall keep a minute book and shall cause minutes to be kept of all meetings, resolutions and decisions made by them. Minutes purporting to be signed by the chairperson of the Trustees of a meeting shall be receivable as prima facie evidence of the matters contained in such minutes.
- 9.23 The Trustees may, by Special Resolution and subject to the provisions of this deed, adopt, amend, alter or rescind any rules necessary for the proper and efficient management of Trustee meetings and the administration and management of the Trust Fund.

#### Convening of meetings of Trustees

- 9.24 The Trustees shall hold at least 2 meetings in each Financial Year.
- 9.25 The chairperson shall convene the meetings of the Trustees.
- 9.26 The chairperson shall convene any additional meetings of the Trustees if the chairperson receives a written request from at least two Trustees. At least two Working Days prior notice of meetings of Trustees shall be given to all Trustees.



#### Appointment of committees

- 9.27 The Trustees may delegate any of their powers and duties under this deed to any committee or committees consisting of such Trustees as the Trustees may appoint for such purpose.
- 9.28 The committee chairperson shall convene committee meetings as required.
- 9.29 Committee minutes and records shall be kept in accordance with clause 9.22.
- 9.30 Committee proceedings shall generally conform to the procedures adopted for meetings of the Trustees.

#### Resolution assented to by Trustees

9.31 A resolution in writing signed or assented to by letter, facsimile or other written manner, by all Trustees entitled to receive notice of meetings of the Trustees, shall be as valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of Trustees. Any such resolution may consist of several documents in like form either signed or dispatched by any 1 or more of the Trustees.

## Teleconference meeting of Trustees

- 9.32 The contemporaneous linking together by telephone or other means of communication of a number of Trustees not less than the quorum (whether or not any 1 or more of the Trustees is out of New Zealand) shall be deemed to constitute a meeting of Trustees and all the provisions of this deed in respect of such meetings shall apply so long as the following conditions are met:
  - 9.32.1 all Trustees for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Trustees shall be entitled to notice of meeting by telephone or other means of communication and to be linked by telephone or other means for the purpose of such meeting, and shall have first received 2 Working Days prior notice of such meeting;
  - 9.32.2 each Trustee taking part in a meeting by telephone or other means of communication must throughout the meeting be able to hear each of the Trustees taking part in the meeting; and
  - 9.32.3 at the commencement of the meeting each Trustee must acknowledge the Trustee's presence for the purpose of the meeting to all other Trustees taking part.

#### 10 General Provisions

#### Service of notices

- 10.1 Notices shall be deemed served by one party upon another party:
  - 10.1.1 if posted, 2 Working Days following posting;
  - 10.1.2 if delivered personally, on the date of service; or



10.1.3 if sent by facsimile or other electronic device, on the date of transmission.

## Receipts

Any funds allocated to any body or institution may be paid to any responsible officer or member of the body or institution concerned who is recognised by the Trustees as having responsibility for that body or institution. The receipt of such person shall be a full discharge to the Trustees who shall not be bound to see to the further application of the funds.

## **Delegation by Trustees**

- The Trustees shall have, to the extent permitted by law, full power to appoint officers, employees, managers and agents and to delegate to any officers, employees, managers, agents or to any attorney or other person nominated or appointed by the Trustees, all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions exercisable by the Trustees under this deed but without releasing the Trustees from their obligations under this deed. Without affecting the generality of the power of delegation the Trustees may in exercising it:
  - 10.3.1 appoint, by power of attorney, any person to be the attorney or agent of the Trustees for such purposes and with such powers, authorities or discretions as the Trustees think fit and with power for the attorney or agent to subdelegate any such powers, authorities or discretions; or
  - appoint, by writing or otherwise, any person to be an officer, employee, manager, agent or sub-agent of the Trustees as the Trustees may think necessary or proper for such purposes and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those vested in the Trustees) as they think fit and to supersede or suspend any such officer, employee, manager, agent or sub-agent for any reason as the Trustees think sufficient.

#### Remuneration and expenses

- 10.4 Each Trustee shall be entitled:
  - in each Financial Year, to remuneration for his or her services as a Trustee as may be fair and reasonable having regard to his or her duties and responsibilities. No Trustee can vote or otherwise influence the decision-making in relation to that Trustee's remuneration;
  - 10.4.2 to be reimbursed for fair and reasonable expenditure incurred by him or her on behalf of the Trust, subject in every case to approval by the Trustees.
- The Trustees may pay reasonable and proper remuneration to any officer, agent, contractor or servant of the Trust (whether a Trustee or not) in return for services actually rendered to the Trust.
- The Trustees may take out a Trustees' indemnity insurance policy or policies in relation to the Trustees and any person employed by the Trustees and to pay the premiums in respect of that policy or those policies out of the Trust Fund.



#### Prohibition of benefit or advantage by Related Parties

- In the carrying on of any business by or for the benefit of the Trust, including in the exercise of any power authorising the remuneration of trustees, no benefit or advantage shall be gained by any person who has some control over the business. A Related Party is treated as having some control over the business where that Related Party, in his or her or its capacity as Related Party, is able in any way (whether directly or indirectly) to determine, or to materially influence the determination of:
  - 10.7.1 the nature or amount of that benefit or advantage; and
  - 10.7.2 the circumstances in which that benefit or advantage is, or is to be, so gained.
- 10.8 For the purposes of clause 10.7:
  - 10.8.1 A person is not treated as having control over the business merely because the persons provides professional services to the Trust or the business and the ability to influence arises because the person is a trustee company, a Public Trust or a Maori Trustee or the person provides those services in the course of and as part of carrying on, as a business, a professional public practice.
  - 10.8.2 **carrying on business** (or similar expression) includes a trustee deriving rent, fines, premiums, or any other revenues from an asset of the Trust, where the asset was disposed of to the Trust by the Related Party.
  - 10.8.3 benefit or advantage includes:-
    - (a) any advantage whether in money or convertible into money;
    - (b) any income (including from business or trade-like activities, employment, dividends, royalties, benefits, pensions, compensation, government grant, property obtained by theft, income from financial instruments, bad debt repayment, foreign company income and foreign investment income);
    - (c) if the person has disposed of an asset to the Trust, the retaining of an interest in that asset, or the asset will revert to that person;
    - (d) but does not include the earning of interest where the interest payable is at no more than the current commercial rate, given the nature and term of the loan.
  - 10.8.4 gained includes anything afforded, received, gained, achieved or derived.

#### Interested Trustees

10.9 It shall be the duty of a Trustee who is in any way directly or indirectly interested in any contract or arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement with the Trustees to declare the nature of his or her interest at a meeting of the Trustees, but failure to



do so shall not disqualify the Trustee or invalidate the contract, proposed contract or any other matter in which the interest lies. A Trustee who is interested shall not be entitled to vote on any issue related to the contract, proposed contract or other matter in which the interest lies.

10.10 If any question shall arise at any meeting as to the materiality of a Trustee's interest or as to the entitlement of any Trustee to vote and such question is not resolved by the Trustee voluntarily agreeing to abstain from voting, such question shall be referred to the chairperson of the meeting and his or her ruling in relation to any such Trustee shall be final and conclusive. A Trustee shall be deemed to have an interest in any matter in which he or she would reasonably be regarded as likely to be influenced materially to prefer interests other than those of the Trust, or any other affected party, for reasons of personal advantage or the advantage of business or family associates.

#### Trustees' indemnity and liability

- 10.11 The Trustees shall not be liable for:
  - 10.11.1 any losses or liabilities;
  - 10.11.2 any act or acts or attempted act done in exercise of or pursuant to any trust, power or discretion vested in them by this deed; or
  - 10.11.3 any omission or omissions or non-exercise in respect of any trust, power or discretion of the Trustees under this deed,

except losses or liabilities arising from their own dishonesty, wilful default or wilful breach of trust or negligence in the carrying out of their legal responsibilities.

- 10.12 The Trustees, and every other person acting on behalf of the Trustees, shall be indemnified out of the Trust Fund against all proper liabilities and expenses incurred by them in the exercise or attempted exercise of the trusts, powers and discretions vested in the Trustees under this deed and in respect of any matter or thing done or omitted to be done in any way relating to this deed and the Trust. This indemnity shall extend to any payments made to any person whom the Trustees bona fide believe to be entitled although it may be subsequently found that the person was not in fact so entitled. The Trustees shall have a lien or charge on the Trust Fund and may retain and pay out of any moneys in the Trust all sums and amounts necessary to give effect to this indemnity.
- 10.13 The liability of the Trustees in connection with this deed or at law, in equity, or on any other basis shall at all times be limited to the Trust Fund.

#### Amendment of the Trust

- 10.14 The Trustees may from time to time by Special Resolution and amending deed or instrument alter, rescind or add to any of the provisions of this deed or its schedules provided that:
  - 10.14.1 at least 14 days notice of intention to move any amendment to this deed is given to all Trustees; and



- 10.14.2 the varied terms do not prejudice:
  - (a) the charitable purpose of the Trust;
  - (b) the eligibility of the Trust to claim the exemptions under Tax Laws for charitable entities; and
  - (c) the ability of the Trust to remain registered under the Charities Act 2005.

#### Winding up of the Trust

- 10.15 The Trust shall terminate and be wound up and dissolved if:
  - 10.15.1 the Trustees resolve by Special Resolution that the Trust shall be wound up; or
  - 10.15.2 the Trust is wound up by law.
- 10.16 Following a Special Resolution to wind up the Trust or if the Trust is wound up by law, The Trust Fund or the proceeds resulting from the Trust Fund shall be applied by the Trustees upon the winding up in the following order:
  - 10.16.1 first in meeting all costs, expenses and liabilities of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of winding up the Trust, and setting aside any amount that the Trustees consider necessary or desirable (having regard to generally accepted accounting practices) in respect of any contingent liability of the Trust; and
  - 10.16.2 secondly, in the payment or distribution (by instalments if the Trustees consider appropriate) of the remaining assets of the Trust to any entity or entities registered with the Charities Commission which in the Trustees' sole discretion has charitable purposes similar to the Trust.
- 10.17 Subject to the provisions of clause 10.16, on winding up no part of the Trust Fund shall be paid, applied or transferred except in accordance with the objects of the Trust, and no private pecuniary profit, benefit or advantage shall be made by any person from the Trust, except in accordance clauses 10.4 to 10.6 inclusive.





Execution and date		
Executed as a deed.		
Date:		
Signed by Richard James Fowler as Settlor in the presence of:	)	
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		
Signed by Rudolfus Matheus Tetteroo as Trustee in the presence of:	) )	
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		
Signed by John William Charleton	)	
as Trustee in the presence of:	)	
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		



Deed establishing the Abel Tasman Birdsong Trust

Signed by  Maureen Agness Clinton-Baker as Trustee in the presence of:	)	·
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		
Signed by Mark Bradley Walter as Trustee in the presence of:	) )	
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		
Signed by  Darryl John Wilson as Trustee in the presence of:	)	
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		
Signed by  Graham John Strickett  as Trustee in the presence of:	)	
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		



Deed establishing the Abel Tasman Birdsong Trust

Signed by Richard James Buxton Fowler as Trustee in the presence of:	)	and the second second
Witness signature:		
Witness name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		